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From: Bahr, Tim
To: Tripp, Anthony; Kothur, Bheem; 
Subject: FW: Aqua Clean regulatory summary
Date: Thursday, March 28, 2013 10:03:05 AM
Attachments: Aqua Clean Commissioner Selvage.pdf 


FYI, see attached.
 
Tim J. Bahr, Administrator
Hazardous Waste Regulation
850-245-8790


From: Yeargan, Mary  
Sent: Wednesday, March 27, 2013 4:48 PM 
To: Bahr, Tim 
Cc: Armstrong, Brian J.; Gibbs, Ana 
Subject: FW: Aqua Clean regulatory summary
 
We are having current complaints and below/attached is the history of previous 
complaints.  We should probably have a discussion between the Compliance folks 
and you guys.   Mary
 


From: Gibbs, Ana  
Sent: Wednesday, March 27, 2013 1:04 PM 
To: Yeargan, Mary 
Subject: Aqua Clean regulatory summary
 
This is the Aqua Clean permit and the letter from Polk County Health Department.  
Thought you would like to see both.
 
Below recaps what has happened from 2008.
 
In 2008, the Florida Department of Environmental Protection received resident 
complaints regarding odor.  The Department obtained a court warrant to conduct 
a site inspection and obtain samples from Aqua Clean.
 
Chastain-Skillman, Inc. on behalf of Aqua Clean Environmental Co., implemented 
the air sampling protocol in July 2008, at the request of the Department to 
determine whether Aqua Clean would be required to obtain an air pollution permit 
for its operation.  The sampling protocol was approved by the Department prior to 
the sampling events during the fall of 2008.  
 
Two weeks of sampling resulted in a total number of 37 petroleum contact water 
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FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF



HEALT



May 12, 2011



Don Selvage, City Commissioner
City of Lakeland
811 East Main Street
Lakeland, FL 33801



Rick Scott
Governor



H. Frank Farmer, Jr., M.D., Ph.D.
State Surgeon General



Subject: Aqua Clean Environmental Company
Odor Complaint



Dear Commissioner Selvage:



The Polk County Health Department has investigated an odor complaint by residents of the Carillon Lakes
Subdivision. Our investigations included:



• Monitoring the subdivision by sending an inspector to the site
• Responding as soon as possible to complaints of odors and noise concerns
• Reviewing the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) files on the Aqua Clean



Environmental facility
• Reviewing any changes that have occurred since the last DEP review
• Inspecting the Aqua Clean Environmental facility.



We have also come to the conclusion that this facility does not pose an environmental health risk to
general public that include the workers present inside the plant, visitors to the plant, and the residents of
Carillon Lakes.



Based on this assessment, the Polk County Health Department has confirmed the presence of occasional
unpleasant odors in the neighborhood and the high pitch whine of a motor along with other heavy
machinery noise. The odors included those similar to rotten eggs, oil and sometimes the smell of
"detergent". Of note, there are agricultural fields nearby that have been known to produce odors during
various parts of the growing I irrigation season. However, during our particular visits recently, the odors
were down wind of the Aqua Clean plant.



The Health Department evaluated potential environmental pathways including dermal contact, ingestion
and inhalation. Only workers would be exposed to dermal contact, and the facility recommends that
workers wear gloves during unloading periods.



In addition storm water runoff at the Aqua Clean is directed to two onsite storm water ponds. Storm water
that comes in contact with their treatment processes is collected and treated. This water does not enter
the onsite ponds. Precautions such as a liner under the plant were put in place during the original
construction.



The drainage pattern at the facility directs any overflow from a transfer of liquid material to onsite holding
tanks. Secondary containment structures are in place to contain any liquid discharged from a tank. Both
Carillon Lakes and Aqua Clean are served by the City of Lakeland Water and Sewer Utilities. No drinking
water wells are located within the subdivision or the industrial park, so there is no potential ingestion
pathway. Aqua Clean has an industrial permit to discharge liquid wastewater to the City of Lakeland
sanitary sewer system and must meet the City's safety standards.



POLK COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT



Daniel O. Haight, MD, FACP
Director



ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING DIVISION
2090 East Clower Street, Bartow, FL 33830
Phone (863) 519-8330 FAX (863) 534-0245



www.mypolkchd.org



Hillory Register, Jr., MPH
Interim Assistant Director











As the responsible permitting authority, the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (DEP)
evaluated the Aqua Clean Environmental facilities and determined that an Air Permit was not required.
This evaluation was based on sampling and analyzing petroleum contact water brought to the facility for
processing. The analyses included an assumption that 100 percent of the volatile organic compounds
would vaporize. The calculations indicated even with all volatile organics becoming air borne, the level of
volatile organics is less than one-tenth of the requirement to permit the facility and monitor for volatile
organic compounds. They may be detected as a "smell" but the levels in this "maximum" scenario while
operating 24 hours a day was below the level of concern.



On March 22, 2011 the Health Department began monitoring the Whistlewood Drive neighborhood for
odors and noise. To date the Department has made 27 site visits to the neighborhood and odors were
noted by our inspectors on five occasions. These odors were consistent with sulfur odors, and once were
described as rotten egg odor, or hydrogen sulfide. It is should be noted that the odor threshold
concentration for many compounds, including hydrogen sulfide, are well below the concentrations that
may present a public health concern. Hydrogen sulfide may be detected as low as 0.0003 to 0.5 parts per
million by the human sense of smell, but health effects other than irritation of eyes, nose and throat may
not be discernable until concentrations exceed 10 parts per million, or at several thousand to 20 times
greater concentrations than the odor threshold limit. Exposure limits to workers such as the Permissible
Exposure Limit established by OSHA is 10 parts per million, and the Recommended Exposure Limit set by
the National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH) is also 10 parts per million. During the
Department's latest visit on May 9, 2011, in response to a specific request by a resident, Health
Department inspectors also confirmed the presence of petroleum odors mixed with sulfur odors. On
another occasion the odor seemed to resemble garbage and may have been due to the processing of
water from the landfill.



Asthma symptoms have many triggers. In as much that any strong odor, perfume, hydrogen sulfide,
smoke or perceived irritants can cause asthma symptoms to be more noticeable than usual, there will be
days that are better than others. On days when there is smoke from local forest fires, excess pollen, high
ozone, or unpleasant odors, it is advisable to spend more time in an air-conditioned indoor environment.



The Health Department is prepared to continue monitoring through the summer; however, based on our
observations, there is currently insufficient evidence that the presence of sulfur and oil odors present a
public health threat.



Sincerely', ,



~
Environmental Engineering Director



Cc: Tony Delgado, Deputy City Manager - City of Lakeland
Cc: Dan Cullen












grab samples. One sample was collected per truckload with a combined truckload 
volume of approximately 48,000 gallons.
 
All samples were analyzed by Lakeland Laboratories, a NELAP certified lab.  The 
sampling results showed that Aqua Clean qualified for an air permit exemption in 
accordance with Rule 62-210.300(3)(b)2., Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.).
 
However, the Department’s actions resulted in Aqua Clean obtaining coverage 
under a Multi-Sector Generic Permit for Stormwater Discharge Associated with 
Industrial Activity through Tallahassee.  Additionally, on May 12, 2010 the 
Hazardous Waste program in Tallahassee issued a New Used Oil and Material 
Processing Permit 294693-HO-001; 294693-SO-002.  Yearly inspections are 
conducted by the Southwest District in Tampa.  Additional inspections are 
conducted when we receive complaints.
 
 
 


Ana Gibbs
External Affairs Manager
Florida Department of Environmental Protection
13051 N. Telecom Parkway
Temple Terrace, FL 33637-0926
(813) 632-7600  Ext. 475
(813) 632-7665  Fax
email: ana.gibbs@dep.state.fl.us
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